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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

   
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Montgomery and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Director of Public Works 
  Steve Finton, City Engineer 
  Michael A. Guerrero, Principal Civil Engineer 
 
DATE: June 7, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration to Authorize the City Manager to Award a Construction Contract to 

All American Asphalt for the Pacific Avenue Resurfacing Project ($654,654.00); 
and Award a Professional Engineering Services Contract to Willdan Engineering 
($48,080.00) for Construction Engineering and Inspection Services 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council pass a motion to: 

1. Authorize the City Manager to award a contract in the amount of $654,654.00 to All 
American Asphalt for the Pacific Avenue Resurfacing Project and Authorize the City 
Manager to approve additional work in an amount not-to-exceed $65,465.00 (10%); 

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a Professional Engineering Services contract with 
Willdan Engineering in an amount not-to-exceed $48,080.00 for construction 
engineering/inspection services; and, 

3. Appropriate City Gas Tax Funds in the amount of $250,000.00 in addition to the existing 
$543,749 Federal Stimulus Funding. 

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
This project is funded with Federal Stimulus Funding provided through the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funds and City Gas Tax Funds.  ARRA funds will be provided to the 
City on a reimbursement basis with no local match required.  On November 3, 2010, City 
appropriated its balance of ARRA funds ($543,749) to the Pacific Avenue Resurfacing Project.  An 
additional appropriation in the amount of $250,000 is required to cover the balance of funding 
needed. Additional City Gas Tax Funds are scheduled within the 2011-2012 Capital Improvement 
Plan, however, since the project contract is being awarded within the 2010-2011 fiscal year the Gas 
Tax Funds are recommended for appropriation at this time. Sufficient Gas Tax Fund reserves are 
available for the proposed appropriation. The following table indicates available funding, expected 
costs and anticipated balance for the project. 
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Budget 
Federal Stimulus Funds $543,749.00 
Additional appropriation recommended 
Gas Tax Funds 

$250,000.00 

TOTAL BUDGET $793,749.00 
Expenditures 

Construction Contract  
(All American Asphalt) 

$654,654.00 

Construction Contingency (10%) $  65,46500 
Inspection Contract (Willdan) $  48,080.00 

Total Estimated Expenditures $768,199.00 

Anticipated Balance Upon Completion $  25,550.00 
 

BACKGROUND: 
Pacific Avenue from Manhattan Beach Boulevard to Rosecrans Avenue is deteriorated and requires 
resurfacing.  The project generally includes cold milling of the existing asphalt roadway surface and 
construction of a new asphalt overlay. The project also includes full roadway reconstruction of 
significantly deteriorated areas, striping/traffic markings, traffic signal loops, and minor concrete 
construction. Since Pacific Avenue has a functional classification as a Major Local street it is 
eligible for federal funding. 
 

Environmental Review 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires public agency decision makers to 
document and consider the environmental implications of their actions. Based on the scope of 
work, the project is categorically exempt pursuant to Sections 15301, Class 1(c).  A Notice of 
Exemption has been filed with the Los Angeles County Clerk’s office for the project. 
 

DISCUSSION: 

Bid Proposals 
This project was advertised for bids in six construction industry publications. Subsequently, 20 sets 
of plans and specifications were provided to contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers. A 
total of seven competitive bids were received and opened on May 5, 2011. The bids ranged from 
the low bid of $654,654.00 by All American Asphalt to the highest bid of $709,105.00. All 
American Asphalt’s bid was reviewed by the Public Works Department and found to be responsive. 
 

NO. CONTRACTOR BID AMOUNT 
1. All American Asphalt  $654,654.00 
2. Sully Miller Contracting Co. $660,000.00 
3. Silvia Construction, Inc. $668,720.00 
4. Hardy and Harper, Inc.  $678,000.00 
5.  Bannaoun Engineers $690,305.00 
6. Shawnan $697,290.00 
7. Excel Paving $709,105.00 
   
 Engineer’s Estimate $706,000.00 
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Representatives of agencies where work has been performed by All American Asphalt have 
indicated that the work performed was to their satisfaction. In addition, All American Asphalt was 
the contractor responsible for completion of the Manhattan Beach Boulevard Improvement Project, 
Peck Avenue Improvement Project, and most recently, the Highland Avenue Resurfacing Project. 
Staff was satisfied with the quality of work and attention to traffic control and residential concerns 
exhibited by All American Asphalt’s construction personnel.  The project was discussed with a 
representative of the firm and he expressed confidence in his bid and a desire to perform the work. 
 

Project Schedule 
Upon approval of the award of contract, City staff anticipates that construction will start at the end 
of June 2011. Construction is expected to last approximately seven weeks, however, the majority of 
work (cold milling existing asphalt roadway and construction of the new asphalt overlay) will be 
completed in ten working days.   
 

Federal Process 
The project is funded with American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funds.  These funds 
are being administered in California by the State of California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans).  Caltrans procedures must be used.  These procedures are very similar to City procedures 
with the exception of additional administrative documentation, labor compliance activities and 
materials sampling and testing requirements.  ARRA funds will be provided to the City on a 
reimbursement basis and no local match is required. 
 
In compliance with Caltrans requirements, the City established a Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBE) utilization goal of 3% for federally funded projects. DBE requirements are 
satisfied if a good-faith effort is made by contractors and the City to utilize DBEs on a project. 
The Contractor made a good-faith effort to include DBE participation in their bid. Although the 
Contractor’s bid includes a commitment to achieve 3.50% DBE utilization on the Pacific Avenue 
project, the DBE listed is a material supplier. Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
guidelines for DBE participation state that only 60% of the cost of supplies may be counted 
toward the DBE goal so that the Contractor’s actual DBE utilization is 2.10%. However, since 
the project includes both Federal funds as well as City funds it is important to note that the 
Contractor’s DBE utilization is 2.53% of the Federal funds. Although the Contractor’s DBE 
utilization is below the City’s goal, the Public Works Department has contacted the Contractor in 
order to solicit additional DBE participation for the project prior to the work commencing so that 
the City and Contractor can justify good-faith effort to achieve the City’s DBE utilization goal.  
 

Construction Engineering and Inspection Services (Willdan Engineering) 
Previously, the City issued a Request for Proposals and developed a list of qualified inspection 
consultants to provide on-call construction inspection services, however, the agreements expired 
in February 2011.  The City utilized the services of Willdan Engineering for the recently 
completed 2010-2011 Water Main Replacement Project that also included work along Pacific 
Avenue from Manhattan Beach Boulevard to Rosecrans Avenue.  The Willdan construction 
management/inspection staff provided services to the satisfaction of the Public Works 
Department, is very familiar with the site specific requirements of the project and is familiar with 
residents’ potential concerns.  Staff recommends that the contract be awarded to Willdan 
Engineering due to their extensive local experience and demonstrated knowledge of the federal 
funding process. The recommended contract would be in the amount of $48,080.00 and would 
provide the following services required to complete the projects in compliance with Caltrans 
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requirements: 
 

• Federal funding compliance documentation including project start-up and close-out 
reports to Caltrans and maintaining project files in preparation for future federal audits.  

• Compliance with Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) regulations. 
• Construction engineering/construction inspection services including full-time inspectors 

to verify construction methods, traffic control and storm water pollution prevention are 
performed according to contract. 

• Labor Compliance including verification that prevailing wages are paid to workers. 
• Caltrans required materials sampling and testing including batch plant and field sampling 

and laboratory analysis of concrete and asphalt materials to verify compliance with 
specifications. 

 

The recommended contract is for a not-to-exceed amount based on utilizing all 35 working days 
allowed under the construction contract for construction inspection services.  Should the work be 
completed in fewer days than the construction contract then actual payment would be based on the 
actual hours worked by the consultant.  
 
Public Notification 
Staff will conduct a community meeting prior to the start of construction to inform residents of 
potential impacts and to hear resident concerns.  Staff will issue weekly updates via email to keep 
residents apprised of project developments. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Map 
2. Construction Contract with All American Asphalt 
3. Professional Engineering Services contract with Willdan Engineering 

 
 
xc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
 Jeanne D. O’Brien, Accountant 
 Eden Serina, Budget Analyst 
















































